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M E M O R A N D U M 

 
TO:  Committee of the Whole, City of Aurora 
 
FROM:  Mallory A. Milluzzi 
 
DATE:  November 7, 2017 
 
RE: Summary of World Class Wireless 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

To aid your discussion and consideration of the pending World Class Wireless Master 
License Agreement on the agenda today, I have enclosed our firm’s prior correspondence with 
World Class Wireless’ legal counsel, which sets forth a summary of the history of the City’s 
negotiations with World Class Wireless, as well as past code issues. 

 
 As a result of the September 20, 2017 letter, World Class Wireless counsel and staff had 
a conference call on October 3, 2017 with City staff and legal to discuss the status of the Master 
License Agreement. As of October 3, 2017, the permit application was substantially complete. 
Based on the substantial compliance with the demands of the September 20, 2017 letter, 
World Class Wireless’ temporary permit was extended until October 13, 2017 to allow for 
formal submittal of the Master License Agreement changes and completion of the minimal 
outstanding permit issues. The City received all of the outstanding permit items and a formal 
submittal by the October 13, 2017 deadline.  
 
 At the November 3, 2017 Planning and Development Committee meeting the Master 
License Agreement was considered and recommended for approval to the full City Council.  
 

If there are any questions, feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 
Enclosures: 
June 6, 2017 Letter to Bruce Goldsmith 
September 20, 2017 Letter to Bruce Goldsmith  
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September 20, 2017 

Sent Via Email 

Bruce Goldsmith 

Dykema Gossett PLLC 

400 Renaissance Center 

Detroit, MI 48243 

bgoldsmith@dykema.com 

 

Mr. Goldsmith: 

 Enclosed are the City’s comments to your proposed changes to the City’s Master License 

Agreement. There are two documents attached. First, the City has created a redline version of the 

document that you sent, as a redline document was not provided to the City, which is the 

document titled Draft Master License Agreement WCW Redline. Second, the City has provided 

its comments to your proposed changes, which are within the document titled WCW Agreement 

with City Changes. If the City agreed with your changes, it accepted the changes within the 

document; all the redlined changes remaining within the document are changes that the City does 

not accept. To the extent possible, the City has provided comments or proposed compromises to 

your proposed changes.  

 An overarching principle that the City wants to emphasize is that this is a Master License 

Agreement with World Class Wireless (“WCW”) that covers not only the currently proposed 

tower (which is on private property), but also any future pole permits that WCW may apply for, 

which may be on private property or on the public ways. For this reason, the portions of the 

Master License Agreement that apply only to the City Ways are not applicable to a Site Specific 

Permit located on private property. This, however, does not mean that the City will remove these 

provisions from the Master License Agreement. I hope this distinction eases some of your 

concerns over regulating private property. 

 Additionally, I would like to address some of the allegations contained in your September 

12, 2017 letter. The City has already responded to your allegations that it treated WCW’s 

applications and poles differently than other companies, but wishes to reiterate these facts. As 

described in the City’s June 6, 2017 letter, WCW did not have an application on file prior to the 

City Code amendments, whereas CyrusOne did. It does not matter whether WCW knew if there 

were applications pending at the time of the moratorium. Further, regarding the currently 

pending pole application, WCW submitted its pole application after all other companies filed 

their applications. The City issues permits on a first come, first served basis. No company could 
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have “jumped WCW in line” since WCW was the last to get in line for a permit. The temporary 

permit is for a temporary structure under the Building Code, it is not a telecommunication 

permit, nor does it specifically authorize telecommunications. As such, WCW’s alleged right to a 

pole in the I-88 corridor did not arise until the permanent pole permit was submitted.  

The City also wants to address your allegations about delay. While the City has needed 

some time to process all of WCW’s proposed changes, it has been diligently reviewing WCW’s 

permanent pole application. In fact, the City has provided WCW with multiple comments 

regarding substantive outstanding issues and documentation needed for the pole permit on topics 

such as fencing and foundation. Those comments highlighted areas where the City indicated it 

required more information from WCW.  

To date, WCW has not offered responses to those comments. Our ongoing negotiations 

over wording in the Master License Agreement should not have prevented your client from 

providing the City with the information it requested – information that the City would still 

require after WCW and the City resolved their differences as to the Master License Agreement’s 

wording.  Even with complete agreement as to the terms and conditions set forth in the Master 

License Agreement, the City cannot issue a permit without these substantive technical responses 

from your client.   

Finally, WCW has no authority to dictate what the City can or cannot permit in the right-

of-way abutting the WCW property. The City must comply with its right-of-way ordinance and 

if there are applications for installations in the right-of-way that abuts the WCW property that 

meet the City’s Code and License requirements, the City has the right and, in fact, the legal 

obligation to grant those permits.  

 WCW has now received comments from staff regarding the substantive aspects of the 

permit application as well as legal’s comments on your proposed changes to the Master License 

Agreement. WCW’s next step toward obtaining  a Master License Agreement is for WCW to 

submit (1) a statement that it is in agreement with the provisions of the attached Master License 

Agreement (meaning that WCW is in agreement with all of staff’s comments) OR  (2) a 

statement that (a) WCW is in substantial agreement the provisions of the attached Master 

License Agreement, (b) a list of all specific Sections for which WCW requests modifications, (c) 

the specific text of WCW’s proposed modifications, and (d) an explanation for each proposed 

modification  The City Council will resolve any remaining differences City’s Master License 

Agreement Template not agreed to at the staff level.  

 The City needs an executable copy of an agreement no later than October 3, 2017 to 

proceed through the City’s approval process in October. Additionally, WCW needs to respond to 

staff’s comments on the pending permanent pole permit by October 3, 2017. The City is 

extending WCW’s temporary permit until October 3, 2017 to allow WCW to submit the 

necessary documents to move forward with a permanent installation. If the City does not receive 
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the necessary information and documents, it will deem WCW’s temporary permit expired as of 

October 4, 2017 and proceed with assessing any necessary fines. 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions. 

       Sincerely, 

       KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS 

        

       Lance C. Malina 

       Attorney for City of Aurora 

 

 

Enclosures 

cc: Mayor Richard Irvin – rirvin@auroa-il.org 

 Richard Veenstra – rveenstra@aurora-il.org 

 Michael Pegues – mpegues@aurora-il.org 

 Stephane Phifer – sphifer@aurora-il.org 
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